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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

December 31, 2012

Honorable Board of City Commissioners
City of Bixby
Bixby, Oklahoma

Woe have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bixby, Oklahoma, (City) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with: auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An auditincludes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overal financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financiaf
position of the governmental activities the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Bixby, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial posttion and
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 31, 2012 on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal controt over financial reporting or on compliance. That reportis an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results
of our audit.

Accounting principles gsnerally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis on pages 7 through 14 and budgetary comparison information on page 55 and the notes on page 55
through 56 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers It to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquirles, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
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City of Bixby
December 31, 2012

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of Bixby's financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual non-major fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

() WM;W

CBEW Professional Group, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Bixby's financial performance provides an overview of the
City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Please read it in conjunction with the
transmittal letter and the City's financial statements, which follow.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Bixby (the "City™)
and its component units using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB Statements No. 14, 34 and
39. Included in this report are government-wide statements for each of two categories of activities -
governmental and business-type.

The government-wide financial statements present the complete financial picture of the City from the
economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. They present governmental
activities and business type activities separately and combined. These statements include all assets of the
City (including infrastructure) as well as all liabilities (including long-term debt).

About the City

The City of Bixby, Oklahoma (Bixby or the City) was admitted as a township in 1906. The City is under
a Home Rule Charter and is ruled by a "Council-Manager Government" as designated under Title 11 of
the Oklahoma Statutes. As a charter city, the citizens from each of the City's five wards elect a council
member to represent their respective ward. At the first meeting after the time prescribed for the beginning
of the terms of newly elected council members, the council elects from its membership a mayor and vice-
mayor. The current population of the City is approximately 21,000.

The City provides the following services: Public safety; streets and roads; water and wastewater services,
culture-recreation; public improvements; planning and zoning; and general administrative services.

The City's Financial Reporting Entity

This annual report includes all activities for which the City of Bixby City Council is fiscally responsible.
These activities, defined as the City's financial reporting entity, are operated within separate legal entities
that make up the primary government.

The City's financial reporting entity includes the primary government (City of Bixby) and the
blended component units as follows:

e The City of Bixby - that operates the public safety; streets and roads; culture recreation; public
improvements; planning and zoning; and general administrative services.
e The Bixby Public Works Authority - that operates the water and sewer services of the City.

Using This Annual Report

This annual report is presented in a format that substantially meets the presentation requirements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. The presentation includes financial statements that communicate the City's financial condition
and changes therein at two distinct levels:

o The City as A Whole (a government-wide presentation)
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* The City's Funds (a presentation of the City's major and aggregate non-major funds)

The City's various government-wide and fund financial statements are presented throughout this
annual report and are accompanied by:

® Management's Discussion and Analysis - provides useful analysis that facilitates a better
understanding of the City's financial condition and changes therein.

* Footnotes - elaborates on the City's accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial
statements and further explain financial statement elements.

* Supplemental Schedules - provides additional information about specified elements of the
financial statements, such as budgetary comparison information.

Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

One of the most frequently asked questions about the City's finances is, "Has the City's overall financial
condition improved, declined or remained steady over the past year?". The Statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way
that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis
of accounting. All of the current year's revenues and expenditures are taken into account regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City's net assets and changes in them from the prior year. You can think
of the City's net assets - the difference between assets and liabilities - as one way to measure the City's
financial condition, or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator
of whether its financial health is improving, deteriorating, or remaining steady. However, you must
consider other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the City's property tax base, the condition of the
City's roads, and the quality of services to assess the overall health of the City.

As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the city
into two kinds of activities:

¢ Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including the police,
fire, general administration, streets, and parks. Sales taxes, franchise fees, and fines finance most
of these activities.

* Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to cover the cost of certain services
it provides. The city's water and sewer service are reported here.

Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the city
as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However,

management establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or
to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money.

9
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Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus
on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting,
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general government
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's
programs. The differences of results in the Governmental Fund financial statements to those in the
Government-Wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each Governmental
Fund financial statement.

Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides - whether to outside
customers or to other units of the City - these services are generally reported in proprietary funds.
Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets. In fact, the City's
enterprise funds are essentially the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide
statements but provide more details and additional information, such as cash flows.

The City as a Whole

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.
For the year ended June 30, 2012, net assets were as follows:

TABLE1
NET ASSETS (In Thousands)

Governmental % Inc. Business-Type % Inc. % Ime.
Activities (Dec.) Activities (Deec.) Total {Dec.)
(restated) (restated)
2012 2011 012 2011 2012 2011

Current assets $ 20,446 H 26,937 -24% $ 10,179 b} 9,836 3% § 306,625 3 36,773 -17%

Capital assets, net 65,687 58,479 12% 45,689 42,307 8% 111,376 100,786 11%

Total assets 86,133 85,416 1% 55,868 52,143 7% 142,001 137,559 3%

Current liabilities 3,813 3,557 7% 2,072 1,218 0% 5,885 4,775 23%

Non-current liabilities 24,49% 27,149 -10% 10,663 9,551 12% 35,191 36,706 4%

Total liabilities 28,311 30,706 -8% 12,765 10,769 19% 41,076 41,475 -1%

Net assets

Invested in capital assets,

pet of related debt 47,180 42,460 11% 34,467 32,408 6% 81,647 74,868 9%

Restricted 5,639 8,885 -37% 5,901 5,946 -1% 11,540 14,835 -22%

Unrestricted 5,063 3,361 43% 2,735 3,920 -9% 7,738 6,331 21%

Total net assets § 57,822 5 54,710 6% $ 43,103 3 41,374 4% § 100,925 $ 96,084 5%

The above numbers reflect an increase in net assets of 6% for governmental activities and an increase of
4% for business type activities. Overall, the net assets for both governmental and business-type activities
increased 5% over last fiscal year.

Governmental activities current assets decreased approximately $6.5 million or 24% due mainly to the
purchase of capital assets, which caused capital assets to increase approximately $7.2 million or 12%.

Business-type activities liabilities increased approximately $2 million or 19% due mainly to new long-
term debt that was issued during the year.
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For the year ended June 30, 2012, net assets of the primary government changed as follows:

TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (In Thousands)
Gevernmental % Inc, Business-Type % Inc. % Inc.
Artivides (Dec.) Actlvitles (Dec.) Tetal (Dec.)
2012 2011 012 011 2012 2011

Revenues
Charges for service H 1,783 £ L713 4% ¥ 7411 5 659 12% i 9,194 b} 8,309 11%
Op eratin; s and contribati 618 627 -1% - - 618 627 -1%
Capital grants snd contributions 800 5,163 -£5% 441 1,484 -T0% 1,241 6,647 -31%
Taxcs 11,535 10,746 i) - 11,535 10,746 %
Intergovemmental revenne 139 125 11% - 139 125 11%
Investment ineome 98 107 -3% 25 40 -38% 123 147 -16%
M iscellamcons 726 1,349 -16% 32 150 -79% 758 1,499 -49%

Totel revenass 15,69 19,830 -21% 7,909 3,270 -4% 23,608 28,100 -16%
Expenses
General povernment 2,498 2,520 -1% - 2,498 2,520 -1%
Publiz safety 5,251 4,996 5% - 5,251 4,996 5%
Streets 1,548 1,692 -9% 1,548 1,692 -9%
Culture, parks and recreation 942 831 13% 942 831 13%
Cetnctary 137 142 -4% 137 142 4%
Economi¢ development 140 127 10% 140 127 10%
Interest on long-term debt 1,019 810 26% 1,019 q10 6%
Water - - 5,529 4,637 19% 3,529 4,637 19%
Wastewater - - 1,703 1,528 1% 1,703 1,528 11%

Total expenses 11,535 11,118 1% 7,232 6,165 17% 18,767 17,233 %

Excess (deficiency ) before

transfors 4,164 8,712 -52% 677 2,105 -68% 4,841 10,817 -55%
Transfers (1,052) (1,864} 44% 1,052 1,864 -44%
Change in met asaets 3,112 6,848 -55% 1,729 3,969 -56% 4,841 10,317 =35%
Beginnjug met nssets (rentated) 5,70 47,861 14% 41,374 37,405 11% 56,084 85,266 13%
Ending met nssets $ 57822 $ 54,709 6% $ 43,103 $ 41,374 4% 8 100,925 $ 96,083 %
T R E— E———— R I ECE——

Governmental Activities capital grants and contributions decreased approximately $4.4 million or 85%
due to $1.2 million contribution from Tulsa County and $2.8 million from BPWA contributed for streets
in prior year that was not received this year. Miscellaneous revemue decreased approximately $623
thousand or 46% due to an allocation from the City of Tulsa for the Fry Creek agreement in the prior year
that was not received this year.

Business-type Activities capital grants and contributions decreased approximately $1 million or 70% due
to contributed capital that was received in FY11. The charges for services increase was due to an increase
in rates from the City’s water provider. Included in expenses of Business-type Activities of the Water
Department are expenses related to debt service requirements which are funded with Sales Tax Revenues
apportioned to the fund. The taxes are classified as general revenue on the Statement of Activities.

Governmental Activities

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given. Of
particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column with
revenues from that particular program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The
reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the
City's taxpayers. It also identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is
self-financing through fees and grants. Some of thé individual line item revenues reported for each
function are:

11
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General Government: Permits and licenses, inspections fees, operating grants
Public Safety: Fines and forfeitures, E-911, rural fire dues, grants
Other public services: Operating grants

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. It is important to note that all taxes are
classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

TABLE 3
Net Revenue (Expense)} of Governmental Activities
(In Thousands}
Net Revenue
Total Expense % Inc, (Expense) % Ine.
of Services (Dec.) of Services (Dec.)
2012 2011 2012 201
General govemment $ 2498 5 2,520 -1%  $(2,155) § (1,067) -102%
Public safety 5,251 4,996 5% 3,741} (3,667) -2%
Streets 1,548 1,692 -0% 337 2,779 112%
Culture, parks and recreation 942 331 13% {90%) (682) -33%
Cemetery 137 142 -4% (33) 4m 18%
Economic development 140 127 10% (140) {127) «10%
Interest on long-term debt 1,019 810 26% (1,019) {810) -26%
Totak $ 11,535 5 11,118 4% 5{(8,334) § (3614) -131%
b

Business-type Activities

The business-type activities had an increase in net assets of $1,729,003.

TABLE4
Net Revenue {Expense) of Business-Type Activities
(In Thousands)
Net Revenue
Total Expense % Ine. (Expense) % Inc.
of Services Dec. of Services Dee.
wz 200 2002 201
Water $ 5,529 $ 4,637 19% § 749 $1,305 -43%
Wastewater 1,703 1,528 11% (129) 610 -121%
Total $ 7.232 $ 6,165 17% § 620 $1915 -68%
TR T S EEE——

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
For the year ended June 30, 2012, the General Fund reported actual budgetary basis revenues over final

estimates by $603,205 or a 9.4% positive variance. General Fund actual expenditures were under final
appropriations by about $493,645 or a 7.3% positive variance.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

At the end of June 30, 2012, the City has $111.4 million invested in capital assets including police and
fire equipment, buildings, water and sewer lines, roads, and park facilities,

TABLE 5
Capital Assets
(Ia Thousands)
(Net of accumnlated depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
(restated) (restated)
21 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Land 13,655 $ 13,026 3 489 $ 489 5 14,144 3§ 13,515
Buildings and improvements 3,230 3,273 726 773 3,956 4,046
M achinery, furniture and equipment 3,135 3,462 220 299 3,355 3,761
Infrastructure 34,420 26,368 44,115 39,837 78,535 66,205
Construction in progress 11,247 12,350 139 910 11,386 13,260
Totals $ 65,687 $ 58479 $ 45,689 §$ 42308 § 111,376 $ 100,787
See note 4 for additional details.

Debt Administration

At year-end, the City has $37.9 million in outstanding notes, bonds, and capital leases. Additionally, the
City had $1.4 million in accrued compensated absences and utility deposits. The decrease in long-term
debt is attributed to normal debt service payments.

TABLE 6
Long-Term Debt
(In Thousands)
Total
Governmental Business-Type Percentage
Activities Activities Total Change
212 2011 012 2011 2012 2011 2011-2012
General obligation bonds H 26,300 % 28,250 % $ - H 26,300 L] 28,250 -6.9%
Capital leases payable 21 555 - 211 555 -62.0%
Revenue bonds payable - 3,310 5,985 3,310 5,985 -44,7%
Notes payable - 8,048 4,004 8,043 4,094 96.6%
Deposits subject to refund - 477 458 477 468 1.9%
Acerned compensated absences 831 703 105 109 936 812 15.3%
Totals 5 27,342 $ 29,508 $ 11,940  § 10,656 § 39,282 5 40,164 -2.2%
See note 5 for additional details.
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

After stabilizing the year before, the City of Bixby’s primary revenue source, the municipal sales tax, in
Fiscal 2011/2012 continued to recover towards pre-recession levels, coming in 5.24% greater than the
prior year. For the forthcoming fiscal 2012/2013 period, budgeted sales tax revenues were forecast to
grow by 9.0% over the prior year budget, in large part due to the entrance of a large new grocery retailer
into the market. This means revenues will have returned to their 2008/2009 level. Expenses for
2012/2013 were budgeted to grow by 10.6% over prior year budget, including one-time contingencies
which were budgeted for using prior year cash carryover.

The 2012/2013 budget is essentially a maintenance level or “steady state” budget, in which normal
revenue growth was consumed by increases in fixed costs (e.g., energy costs, health insurance, workers
compensation premiums, etc..). Fortunately, the mid-year opening of the community’s largest grocery
store made possible, for the first time in several years, the granting of ongoing cost-of-living pay
increases to our workforce. Improving employee compensation will continue to be a focus of
management in the next few years, a goal which will require us to continue to operate at present staffing
levels. The City did establish a new Fire Marshal position within the 2012/2013, but only at the expense
of a vacant Assistant Fire Chief position.

After months of research and analysis including conducting a rate study by outside financial advisers, the
Bixby Public Works Authority (BPWA) enacted a series of multi-year phased utility rate increases,
designed to ensure revenues are generated to make various required capital improvements to the system
infrastructure. BPWA also passed along to its customers an increase in water rates enacted by the city’s
water provider, the City of Tulsa, and adopted the first increase in Bixby’s stormwater management fee
since its inception 20 years ago to restore purchasing power of the fee and enable us to better accomplish
stormwater management infrastructure objectives. Finally, the City of Bixby also increased its residents’
monthly EMS fee in response to an increased charge by its service provider, EMSA, triggered by Bixby’s
increased census count, At the same time, EMSA significantly expanded its level of service to the
community. Bixby’s overall utility rates and service fees remain roughly comparable to those found in
other area communities.

While operating budgets will remain lean for the foreseeable future, there are a number of significant
capital improvement projects slated to be completed or initiated in fiscal 2012/2013 and following years,
funded largely by the 2011 General Obligation bond issues, various grants, and long-term low interest
loans. These include major street improvements, expansion of the Police Department quarters within City
Hall, sewer system improvements (including a major study evaluating the best option for replacing our
lagoon systems with a mechanical plant, locally or regionally), and completion of master plan projects at
the award-winning Bentley Youth Sports Complex. A continuing special emphasis is being placed on
investment in technology, as resources allow, improving the operating efficiency and effectiveness of
various departments. This year’s efforts include launching a major GIS update and automating police and
court citation processes.

The long term outlook for the City of Bixby remains positive, as long term local economic development
initiatives take root and the national economy experiences growth. City of Bixby officials aggressively
market the community as a potential home to retailers in an effort to expand the number of locally
available shopping and dining options and boost municipal operating revenues. Bixby is known as a
friendly, attractive and rewarding place to which to relocate and prosper. Opportunity for new business
activity abounds in Bixby, which features some of the highest population growth trends and most

14



CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

favorable income and educational attainment demographics found in the state of Oklahoma, as well as a
documented retail trade gap in excess of $1.18 billon. This market potential, along with Bixby’s high
quality of schools, status as the safest community in the state for cities its size, with a stable, progressive
government, a dynamic chamber of commerce, and very attractive quality of life, continue to make Bixby
a top choice for people and businesses looking to relocate to the Tulsa metro area in NE Oklahoma.

Official 2010 Census results revealed Bixby was indeed one of the fastest growing cities in Oklahoma in
the past decade, and second fastest growing in the Tulsa metro region, having grown by 57%. At just
under 21,000 people in the 2010 Census, Bixby is now the 20th largest city in the state, up from 32nd a
decade ago. And while some Tulsa metro area communities are approaching “built-out” status, Bixby has
plenty of remaining land within its fence line to accommodate both additional residential growth and
significant commercial development, including along the Arkansas River.

Despite this growth, Bixby has retained a friendly, small town feel, with beautiful neighborhoods,
numerous churches, and many community amenities. In 2009, these factors led CNN Money.com to
select Bixby as one of its Best Places to Live in America, designating it one of America’s best small
towns. Commercial developers have likewise praised the City of Bixby for being “business friendly” and
easy to work with, citing the personal attention and access to city staff.

After conducting an extensive analysis of the City of Bixby’s fiscal conditions and performance in mid
2011, the national rating agency Standard & Poor’s assigned an “AA” rating with stable outlook to
Bixby’s 2011 General Obligation bonds. Only one city in Oklahoma has a better G.O. bond rating.

Bixby participates in the diversified Tulsa regional economy and labor market, which is recognized
nationally for its performance:

a. Greater Tulsa selected No. 1 place to live in the U.S. (Relocate America 2009)
b. No. 1 metro for cost of living (Business Facilities 2010)

¢. No. 4 metro for quality of life (Business Facilities 2010)

d. No. 6 region for small business (The Business Journals 201 1)

¢. Top 100 Metro among the leading world economies (Brookings Institution 2012)
f. No. 1 fastest-growing state by GDP (The Huffington Post 2010)

g No. 1 state for entrepreneurship (Kaufman Foundation 2010)

h. No. 3 state for corporate tax environment (Area Development 2010)

1. No. 4 state for workforce development (Area Development 2010)

J- No. 4 state for employment (Business Facilities 2010)

k. Top 10 state for job growth and business creation (Bureau of Labor Statistics 2011)
1. No. 10 state for doing business (Area Development 2010)

m. No. 15 best state for top business climate (Site selection Magazine 2012)

Bixby is well connected to the state and regional economy via an excellent set of state highways and is
less than a thirty minute drive to Tulsa International Airport and downtown Tulsa.

Bixby’s percentage of citizens holding B.S. degrees or higher is very high, (at 38%, more than 2/3rds
higher than statewide average). Bixby has the highest median home values in the Tulsa Metro Region (at
$168,500, is 70% higher than the state as a whole). Finally, Bixby has the highest Per Capita Income in
the Tulsa Metro Region, (at $34,004, is 51% higher than state as a whole).

The Bixby Public Schools district is one of the fastest growing in the state, having this year alone
experienced a 7% growth in student population. In 2010, voters approved by an overwhelming majority
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a multi-year $62,000,000 bond issue, without raising taxes, for the construction and renovation of school
buildings. A new middle school was constructed and opened in the Fall of 2012 on Mingo between 151st
and 161st, and a new elementary school, currently under construction on 131st between Garnett and
129th, will open next Fall. This award-winning school system boasts excellent state test scores and
outstanding activity programs. Beginning with the 2012-2013 school year, the Oklahoma State
Department of Education launched its A-F grading system of the state's schools. Bixby Public Schools
received some of the highest grades awarded by the state, including three individual schools with A's
grades and two with a 4.0, the highest grade possible. Less than 7% of the schools in the state received
4.0 grades.

The 4,500 seat Spirit Bank Event Center which has for several years regularly hosted world-class
entertainment and numerous events attracting visitors from throughout the region, recently became the
home venue for the Tulsa 66ers professional NBA Development league basketball team, the farm club
for the world runner-up champion Oklahoma City Thunder. Having experienced such a favorable leasing
response, owners of a newly-constructed $20 million Class “A” 248 unit apartment complex, Encore on
Memorial, are now making expansion plans. This Fall, Reasor’s opened in north Bixby what is widely
considered the finest grocery store in this state and region. The first Sprouts Farmers’ Market grocery
store to locate in Eastern Oklahoma is now under construction with plans to open later this Spring,
further expanding the shopping choices available to residents. A $5 million park expansion and upgrade
at Bentley Youth Sports Complex now underway will improve several of the existing sports venues and
add an additional softball quad. These improvements will enable this outstanding sports complex to hold
even more sports tournaments in the coming years, something which has proven to be a major stimulus to
area hotel and restaurant and other retail business in recent years.

Contacting the City's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, Cusiomers, and creditors with a
general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Finance
Director's Office at P.O. Box 70, Bixby, OK 74008 or phone at (918) 366-4430.

Respectfully submitted,

Betty Koehn
City Treasurer/Finance Director
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Statement of Net Assets— June 30, 2012

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Internal balances
Due from other governments
Capital Assets:
Land and construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciation
Unamortized debt issuance costs
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Due to bondholders
Long-term liabilities

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted by:

State statutes

Enabling legisiation

Contractual
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 6,556,790 $ 3,518,771 10,075,561
11,784,361 4,609,305 16,393,666
772,314 1,449,509 2,221,823
(47.671) 47,671 -
934,282 212,306 1,146,588
24,901,894 628,050 25,629,944
40,785,518 45,061,409 85,846,927
445,439 341,208 786,647
[ 86,132,927 $ 55,868,229 142,001,156
$ 759,956 $ 839,266 1,599,222
83,775 090,334 174,109
54,420 - 54,420
2,915,199 1,142,356 4,057,555
24,497,230 10,692,911 35,190,141
$ 28,310,580 $ 12,764,867 41,075,447
47 179,541 34,466,914 81,646,455
4,041,930 . 4,041,930
507,786 540,031 1,047 817
1,089,656 5,361,025 6,450,681
5,003,434 2,735,292 7,738,826
$ 57,822,347 $ 43,103,362 100,925,709

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Statement of Activities —Year Ended June 30, 2012

Program Revenus Net nse) Revenue and Chan in Net Assets
sperﬁng EaEhl Erﬁnts

Chargesfor, ~ Grapts and and Govemnmental  Business-type
Eunctiona/Proarams Emsnaes Services Cootributions  Coptributions Activitios Activitieg Total
Primary govermnment
Governmental Activities:
General Government ] 24975631 $ 342547 5 - $ - $ (21549084) 3 $  (2,154,584)
Puhlic Safety 5,251,057 1,033,923 436,523 39,889 (3,740,722) - (3,740,722)
Streets 1,548,361 270,003 181,648 759,913 (336,707} - {336,707)
Culture and Recraation 041,802 32,574 (909,228) - (009,228}
Cemetery 137,320 104,200 . R (33,030) . (33,030)
Economic Development 140,198 - - = (140,198) - {140,198)
Interest on Long-term debt 1019404 - - - (1,019,404) - (1,019.404)
Total governmental activities 11,535,673 1,783 427 618171 798,802 (8,334,273) - (8,334,273)
Business-Typa Activities:
Water 5,628,801 5,277 401 . - 748,600 748,800
Wastewater 1,702 833 1,133,500 - 440,346 - {128,987) {128,987}
Total business-type activities 7.231,634 7,410,901 - 440,346 - 819,613 619813

Total primary govemnment _$ 18,767,307 $ 9,194,328 3 818,171 $ 1,240,148 $ (8334273) § 619,613 $ (7.714,660)

General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes $ 25660511 $ - & 288051
Sales and use taxes 7,702,809 - 7,702,809
Franchise taxes and public service taxes 874,088 - 874,968
Hotelimotel taxes 136,667 - 135,557
EB11 taxes 161,340 - 161,340
Intergovernmental revenue not restricted to specific programs 130,264 - 130,284
Unresiricted investment earnings 97,828 25,445 123,273
Miscellaneous 726,428 32,307 758,735
Transfers {1,051.638 1,051,638 -
Total general revenues and transfers 11,447,087 1,108,380 12,558,457
Change in net assets 3,112,794 1,728,003 4,841 757
Net assats - beginning (restated) 54,700,553 41,374,359 96,083,912
Net asssts - ending I FERAT T O05.367 3 I0EENT

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Governmental Funds Balance Sheet - June 30, 2012

ABBETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
interest recalvable
Receivabls from cther govemments
Due from cther funds
Taxes receivable, net
Court fines receivalbig, net
Ambulance recelvable, net
Utiities recaivable, nat
Other recelvables

Inventorles

Prepaid expenses

Total assats

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Ligbiltiss;

Duve to bondhelders
Deferred revenue
Other payables

Total kabiities

Fund balances:
Restrictad
Assigned
Unassignad
Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balancas

zan’ [l
Gangral Fung Fund 2008 Bond Fund 2011 Bond Fund
$ 2,256,902 $ 665,397 § 44 s &78,6820
1323725 3037127 7,345,187
808,713 212,206 -
98,081 = 6,420
91,464 - F
571,200 ;
14,038
25,504 -
F le ] 3.91&350 [] 44 3 7.930|207
$ 144,510 ] H - $ 250,057
192,435 - .
149,633 44
54,420 -
456,764 -
6,556 - - -
T ———
1,004,318 - 44 250,057
- 3,878,306 - 7,827,891
3,684,423 36,954 - 62,458
806 - - -
3,985,309 3,915,350 - 7,660,150
T AmE T e 3 @ T Tomen

Debt Servies
Fund

880,107
869,013

20,825
473

2,048

Oth

Eunds

3,961,678
2,298,855

204,744
35,924
22231

19,877
26,152

Total
Governmantal
Eunds

§ 8,122,568
14,872,487

1,146,668
140,898
113,695
571,200

14,038
19,677
53,704

3 1.552&- E E1ﬁf.18i ! 25.054.@-

$ $ 492088 § 886,620
20,183 212,618

103,883 253,560

- - 54,420

12,195 35,250 504,200

- - 6,556

12,185 B51,360 1.917.953
1,481,152 4,125,249 17,122,488
48,118 1,880,543 5,623,458

- - 390,866

50271 5,015,782 23,136,872

§ 1582466 § 6667161 § _ 75054,855

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Year

Ended June 30, 2012

Citize Debt Other Total
lanned Service Governmental Goverpmental
ral Fu Fund 2008 Bopd Fund Eund Fund Funds Funds
REVENUES
Praperty taxes - - 3 - $ - $ 2,667,060 $ - $ 2,867,080
Salas and use tax 4,197,303 1,573,988 - 2,113,166 7.884,457
Franchise and miscelianeous taxes 874,968 - - 266,897 1,174,865
intergovermmental 801,343 - - - 45,180 646,523
Licenses and parmits 334,999 - 334,998
Charges for services 278,005 20,292 604,820 901,117
Fines & forfeitures 783,458 - - - - 783,458
Investment earnings 10,481 13,694 6,250 52,459 8,558 23,614 115,057
Miscellangous 327,082 - 26,935 - - 401,249 755,266
Total revenues 7,405,839 1,687,682 33,185 52,459 2,695,911 3,484,926 15,256,802
EXPENDITURES
Administration 386,600 - 366,890
City attornay 94,764 - 44,764
Municipal court 98,679 - - 98,679
Community service 3,757 - - - - 3,757
General govarnment 775,784 - - - 775,784
Police 2,474,505 - 2,474,505
Fire 2,010,811 - 2,010,811
Emergancy Managemen! 26,081 - - - . 26,061
Strests 476,224 - - - - 323,818 800,042
Culture and recreation 19,335 . - 731,337 750,672
Cemetery 122,782 - - - 2,072 124,794
Economic development - - - - 138,239 136,238
E-811 - . 84,369 84,388
Capital cutlay 45,037 4,067,209 2,223,051 2,777.988 9,113,285
Debt servica:
Principal 36,325 - - 1,850,000 309,112 2,204,437
Interest and other charges 8,454 - - - 896,018 6,942 1,011,409
Tota! expenditures 6,578,405 - 4,067,209 2,223,051 2,646 016 4374817 20,169,498
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
axpanditures 827,234 1,567,662 {4,034,024) (2,170,592} [250,105) (889891} (4,929,696}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 118,747 - 1,474,306 - - 3,866,510 5,559,663
Transfers out {170,000} (1,345,501) {44} - - 6,183,282 (7.698,827)
Total ether financing sources and uses (51,253) {1,345.501) 1,474,262 - - (2216772} {2,135,264)
Net change in fund balances 775,981 242,181 (2,559,762) (2,970,592) (250,105) (3,106,663) {7,088,860)
Fund balances - beginning 3,208,328 3,873,169 2,559,762 9,850,742 1,780,376 9,122 455 30,205,832
Fund balances - ending §_ 3,985.300 § 3,915,350 $ - § 7,680,150 $ 1,540,271 $ 8,015,792 § 231363872

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Total fund balance, governmental funds $ 23,136,872
Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the Statement of Nat Assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and therefore are not
reported in this fund financial statement, but are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement
of Net Assets. 65,687,412

Certzin other long-term assets are not available to pay currant period expenditures and therefore are not
reported in this fund financial statement, but are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement
of Net Assets.
Unamortized debt issuance costs 445 439

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for cumrent period expenditures and therefore are
deferred in the funds. 504,209

Certain special revenue funds are used by management to perform business-type actvities. The assets
and liabilities of these special revenue funds are included in business-type activities in the Statement of
Net Assets.

Water and Sewsr Development Fund (540,031)
Citizen's Planned Fund (3,915,350)
{4,455,381)

Some liabilities (such as Notes Payable, Capital Lease Contract Payable, Long-term Compensated
Absences, and Bonds Payable ), are not due and payable in the current period and are not included in
the fund financial statement, but are included in the govemmental activities of the Statement of Net
Assets.

Accrued Interest payable (83,775)
Capital lease obligation (210,948)
General obligation bonds (26,300,000)
Bond premium (70,053)
Accrued compensated absences (831,428)
27,496,204

Net Assets of Govarnmental Activities in the Statement of Net Assets $ 57,822,347

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Governmental Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: $ (7,068,960)

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets and bond issue costs as expenditures because
such outlays use current financlal resources. in contrast, the Statement of Activities reports only a
portion of the outlay as expense. The outiay is allocated over the assets’ estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense for the period.

Capital asset purchases capitalized 9,071,554
Capital assets contributed 697,518
Depreciation expense (2,534,860}
Book value of disposed capital assets (25,521)
7,208,691

Governmental funds report bond issuance costs as expenditures while governmental activities
report amortization expense to allocate those expenditures over the term of the bonds:
Amortization expense (45,930}

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds:
Deferred revenue 73,862

Certain special revenue funds are used by management to perform business-type activities. The
net change in fund balances of these special revenue funds are included in business-type activities
in the Statement of Net Assets:

Water and Sewer Development Fund 1,029,270
Citizen's Planned Fund (242,181)
787,089

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases
jong-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces jong-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Assets:

Principal payments on long-term debt 2,294,457
Amortization of bond premium 5,423
2,299,880

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and these are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Change in accrued interest payable (13,417)
Change in accrued compensated absences (128,422)
(141,839)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 3,112,724

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Net Assets - June 30,2012

Bixby Public

Works Authority
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,323,093
Investments 102,679
Restricted:

Cash and cash equivalents 35,087
Due from other funds 134,124
Accounts receivable, net 1,449,509

Total current assets 3,044,492
Non-cumrent assets:
Restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents 848,783
investments 1,164,530
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 628,050
Other capltal assets, net of accumulated depreciation 45,061,409
Unamortized issue costs 341,208
Total non-current assets 48,043,980
Total assets ] 51,088,472
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 452,631
Salaries payable 40,797
Accrued interest payable 90,334
Due to other funds 21,462
Deposits subject to refund 47,633
Compensated absences 20,962
Notes payable 718,761
Bonds payable 355,000
Total current liabilities 1,747,580
Nen-current liabiiities:
Compensated absences 83,847
Deposits subject to refund 429,688
Notes payable 7,329,092
Bonds payable 2,850,284
Total non-current liabilities 10,692,911
Total liabilities 12,440,491
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 34,466,914
Restricted for debt service 1,445,675
Unrestricted 2,735,392
Total net assets $ 38,647,981

Sec accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Year Ended

June 30, 2012

Bixby Public

Works Authority
REVENUES
Water $ 6,142,023
Sewer 985,301
Miscellaneous 32,307
Total operating revenues 7,159,631
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 1,399,619
Water 3,833,965
Wastewater 436,912
Amortization expense 105,322
Depreciation 982,690
Total Operating Expenses 6,758,508
Operating income 401,123
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 8216
Loss on disposal of capital assets (84,642)
interest expense (383,465)
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) (459,891)
Income {loss) before transfers {58,768)
Capital contributions 435,596
Transfers in 5,354,859
Transfers out {3,215,595)
Change in net assets 2,516,092
Total net assets - beginning 36,131,889
Total net assets - ending $ 38,647,981

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Reconciliation of Proprietary Funds and Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Tota! net assets, proprietary funds $ 38,647,981
Amounts reported for business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:
Certain special revenue funds are used by management to perform business-type actvities. The assets
and liabilities of these special revenue funds are included in business-type activities in the Statement of
Net Assets.
Water and Sewer Development Fund 540,031
Citizen's Planned Fund 3,915,350
4,455,381
Net Assets of Business-type Activities in the Statement of Net Assets $ 43,103,362
Net change in net assets - total proprietary funds: $ 2,516,092
Amounts reported for Business-type Activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:
Certain special revenue funds are used by management to perform business-type activities.
The net change in fund balances of these special revenue funds are included in business-
type activities in the Statement of Net Assets:
Water and Sewer Development Fund (1,028,270}
Citizen's Planned Fund 242,181
(787,089)
Change in net assets of business-type activities $ 1,729,003

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30,2012

Bixby Public
Works Authority
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 6,903,329
Payments to suppliers (3,797,708)
Payments to employees (1,507,381)
Receipts of customer meter deposits 88,206
Refunds of customer meter deposits (78,397)
Interfund receipts 52,317
Interfund payments (448,234)
Net cash provided by operating activitles 1,212,134
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds 5,354,859
Transfers to other funds (3,215,595)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 2,139,264
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets (4,449,732)
Proceeds from debt 4,715,595
Principal paid on debt (3,000,980)
Bond issuance costs paid (49,500)
Interest and fiscal agent fees paid on debt (369,920)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities (3,154,537)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sale of investments 64,192
interest and dividends 8,216
Net cash provided by investing activities 72,408
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 269,269
Balances - beginning of year 1,937,694
Balances - end of year $ 2,206,963
Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,323,093
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - current 35,087
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - noncurrent 848,783
Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 2,206,963
(Continued)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Proprietary Funds Statement of Cash Flows - Year Ended June 30, 2012, (Continued)

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
Operating Activities:
Operating income $ 401,123
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:

Depreciation expense 982,690
Amortization expense 105,322
Change in assets and liabilities:
Due from other funds 52,317
Due to other funds (448,234)
Accounts receivable (256,302)
Accounts payable 373,151
Accrued salaries payable 11,340
Deposits subject to refund 9,809
Accrued compensated absences (4,375)
Due to other governments (14,707)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,212,134

Noncash activities:

Forgiveness of debt 435,596

435,596

ah|n

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Footnotes to the Basic Financial Statements:
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City’s financial reporting entity includes the primary government (City of Bixby) and the blended
component unit as noted below. This annual report includes all activities for which the City of Bixby
City Council/Manager is fiscally responsible.

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 14, 34, and 39 and includes all component units for which
the City is financially accountable.

The City of Bixby — that provides the public safety, health and welfare, streets and highways, parks and
recreation, and administrative activities.

The City of Bixby has a population of approximately 21,000 located in northeast Oklahoma. The City is
a Council/Manager form of government that provides for three branches of government:

Legislative — the City Council is the governing body elected by the citizens
Executive — the City Manager is the Chief Executive Officer and is appointed by the City
Council

o Judicial — the Municipal Judge is a practicing attorney appointed by the City Council

The City provides typical municipal services such as public safety, street maintenance, culture, parks and
recreation.

Blended Component Units:
e The Bixby Public Works Authority — that operates the water and sewer services of the City.

This component unit is a Public Trust established pursuant to Title 60 of Oklahoma State law. Public
Trusts (Authorities) have no taxing power. The Authority is generally created to finance City services
through issuance of revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt and to enable the City Council to
delegate certain functions to the governing body (Trustees) of the Authority. The Authority generally
retains title to assets which are acquired or constructed with Authority debt or other Authority generated
resources. In addition, the City has leased certain existing assets at the creation for the Authority to the
Trustees on a long-term basis. The City, as beneficiary of the Public Trust, receives title to any residual
assets when a Public Trust is dissolved.

B. Basis of Presentation and Accounting
Government-Wide Financial Statements:

The statements of net assets and activities are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic
resources measurement focus. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when
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earned and expenses (inchuding depreciation and amortization} are recorded when the liability is incurred
or economic asset used.

Program revenues in the Statement of Activities are revenues that are derived directly from each activity
or from parties outside of the City’s taxpayers. The City has the following program revenues in each
activity:

* Public Safety - Fire, Police, Ambulance — fines and forfeitures, ambulance fees, fire run charges,
911 revenue and restricted operating grants,

* Streets — Commercial vehicle and gasoline excise tax shared by the State and other restricted
operating grants.
Culture, parks, and recreation — park usage fees, fishing license fees, operating and capital grants.
Cemetery — cemetery revenues
General Government — licenses and permits and restricted operating grants.

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue even
if restricted for a specific purpose.

Governmental Funds:
The City’s governmental funds include;

Major Funds:

* General Fund — accounts for all activities not accounted for in other special-purpose funds. Due
to the implementation of GASB 54, the General Fund also includes the Rural Fire, Fishing
License, Cemetery Beantification and Cemetery Maintenance accounts.

* Citizen’s Planned Fund — a capital project fund that accounts for % cent sales tax restricted for
sewer system improvements and debt service.

* 2008 Bond Fund — a capital project fund that accounts for bond proceeds used to finance parks
and street improvements.

* 2011 Bond Fund — a capital project fund that accounts for bond proceeds used to finance streets,
parks and recreation, and public safety improvements,

¢ Debt Service Fund — a debt service fund that accounts for receipt of ad valorem taxes and used to
make debt service payments for general obligation bonds.-

Aggregated Non-Major Funds (reported as Other Governmental Funds):

Special Revenue Funds:

® Park Fund — accounts for % penny sales tax used to improve and maintain Bentley Park.

e E911 Fund — accounts for revenues received from tariff rates on base line telephone
charges and expenditures for operations and maintenance of the E-911 system.

¢ Fry Creek Maintenance Fund — accounts for the ongoing maintenance of the Fry Creek
Channel.

* Economic Development Fund — accounts for revenues received from hotel lodging tax
and expenses to enhance the City’s ability to attract new industry to the area.
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Capital Project Funds:

e Cemetery Care Fund — accounts for 12.5% of cemetery revenue restricted by State law
for cemetery capital improvements.
Capital Improvement Fund — accounts for % cent sales tax for capital improvements.
Street and Alley Fund — accounts for revenues received from gasoline excise tax, motor
vehicle tax and expenditures made for street maintenance and operations.

e 2007 Bond Fund — accounts for bond proceeds used to finance patks and street
improvements.

e Stormwater Management Fund — accounts for revenues from stormwater fees and
expenses for maintenance and capital improvements of the stormwater system.

e Water and Sewer Development Fund — accounts for revenue from water and sewer
development fee and expenses for water and sewer maintenance and improvements.

Debt Service Funds:
e 2006 Debt Service Fund — accounts for % penny sales tax restricted for paying principal
and interest on general obligation bonds of the City.

The governmental funds are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. On the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and measurable and available to pay
current financial obligations, while expenditures are recorded when incurred and payable from current
financial resources. The City defines revenue availability as collected within 60 days of period end.

The reconciliation of the governmental funds financial statements to the governmental activities
presentation in the government-wide financial statements is the result of the use of the accrual basis of
accounting and economic resources measurement focus at the government-wide level.

The General Fund, Citizen’s Planned Fund, 2008 Bond Fund, 2011 Bond Fund, and Debt Service Fund
are considered major funds and are therefore displayed in separate columns. All other governmental

funds are considered non-major funds and are aggregated under the column titled Other Governmental
Funds.

Proprietary Funds:
The City’s proprietary funds include:
Enterprise Fund

» Bixby Public Works Authority Fund that accounts for the activities of the public trust in providing
water and sewer services to the public.

The proprietary funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources
measurement focus. For business-type activities and enterprise funds, Financial Accounting Standard
Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before
November 30, 1989, have been applied, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.

For purposes of the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets, operating revenues
and expenses are considered those whose cash flows are related to operating activities, while revenues
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and expenses related to financing, capital and investing activities are reported as non-operating or
transfers and contributions.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Acconnting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement
focus applied,

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item b
below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic
resources” measurement focus is used as appropriate:

a. All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current financial
assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present
sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund
balance as their measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.

b. The proprietary fund utilizes an "economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting objectives of
this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery),
financial position, and cash flows, All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with
their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net assets.

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred
or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange
and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable
and available". Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available
means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter (within 60 days of period end) to pay
current liabilities. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are reported when due.

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,

revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic
asset used.
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D. Assets, Liabilities, and Equity
Cash and Investments

For the purposes of the statements of net assets, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, "cash and cash
equivalents" includes all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposits or short-term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less. Investments of the promissory note trustee
accounts are considered cash equivalents.

Investments are carried at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market price.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues eamed at year-end and not yet
received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes, franchise
taxes, ad valorem taxes, grants, police fines, and ambulance fees. Business-type activities report utilities as
its major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such
as sales tax, franchise tax, ad valorem tax, and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since
they are usually both measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are
deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the
government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment
earnings are recorded when earned only if paid within 60 days since they would be considered both
measurable and available. Proprietary fund material receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end
and not yet received. Utility accounts receivable comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables.
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of
accounts receivable.

Capital Assets

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets
are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in
the government-wide or fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, capital assets are accounted for as capital assets. All capital
assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated
capital assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated historical
cost was used to value infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2002.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation is provided
over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. A capitalization
threshold of $1,500 is used to report capital assets. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as
follows:

- Buildings 10-60 years

- Machinery and Equipment 3-30 years
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- Infrastructure 5-60 years
- Other Improvements 5-60 years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary
fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include cash and investments of the proprietary fund that are legally restricted as to their
use. The primary restricted assets are related to revenue bond trustee accounts and utility meter deposits.

Long-Term Debt

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund
financial statements,

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in
the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists of notes payable, capital leases, general
obligation bonds, revenue bonds, and accrued compensated absences.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The
debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal and interest reported as
expenditures. The accounting for the proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the
government-wide statements.

Compensated Absences

The City's policies regarding vacation, sick, and compensatory time permit employees to accumulate
varying amounts as determined by management and contracts with employee groups.

Compensated absences are reported as accrued in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements.
Governmental funds report only the matured compensated absences payable to currently terminating
employees,

Equity Classifications

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,

mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.
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b. Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net assets — All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested
in capital assets, net of related debt™.

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net assets when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.  Fund balance is further classified as
nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. These classifications are defined as:

a. Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (1) not in spendable form
or (2) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

b. Restricted — consists of fund balance with constraints placed on the use of resources either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or
(2) laws through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the city’s highest level of decision-making authority. The City’s highest
level of decision-making authority is made by ordinance. Currently, the City has no committed fund
balance.

d. Assigned — includes amounts that are constrained by the city’s intent to be used for specific purposes
but are neither restricted nor commiited. Assignments of fund balance may be made by city council
action or management decision when the city council has delegated that authority. Assignments for
transfers and interest income for governmental funds are made through the budgetary process.

e. Unassigned — represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted fund balance prior to the use of the unrestricted fund balance
when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance are
available. The City’s policy for the use of unrestricted fund balance amounts require that committed
amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts when
expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.

E. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses
Sales Tax

The City presently levies a three and one half cent sales tax on taxable sales within the City. The sales
tax is collected by the Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City in the month following
receipt by the Tax Commission. Two cents is recorded in the General Fund, three-fourths cent in the
Citizen’s Planned Fund, one-fourth cent in the Capital Improvement Fund, one-fourth cent in the 2006
Debt Service Fund, and the remaining one-fourth cent in the Park Fund.
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Sales tax resulting from sales occurring prior to year-end and received by the City after year-end have
been accrued and are included under the caption “Due from other governments”. They represent taxes on
sales occurring prior to year-end.

Property Tax

Under State law, municipalities are limited in their ability to levy a property tax. Such tax may only be
levied to repay principal and interest on general obligation bonded debt approved by voters and any
court-assessed judgments.

At the present time the City levies a property tax to fund the annual debt service tequirements of
general obligation bonds outstanding.

The property tax levy, as determined by the City’s debt service needs, is submitted to the County
Excise Board for approval. County assessors determine the taxable value of real estate and
personal property in the County. A State Board of Equalization hears complaints on real estate
values with the power to equalize assessments. Under present State law, the ratio of assessed value
to true value cannot be less than 11 percent nor more than 13% percent.

Property taxes levied by the City are billed and collected by the County Treasurer’s Office and
remitted to the City in the month following collection, Property taxes are levied normally in
October and are due in equal installments on December 31 and March 31. Property taxes unpaid
for the fiscal year are attached by an enforceable lien on property in the following October.
Property taxes levied, but not collected during the year or within 60 days of year-end are reported
as deferred revenue.

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the City’s net assessed valuation of taxable property was

$194,438,075. The taxes levied by the City per $1,000 of net assessed valuation for the year ended
June 30, 2012 was $13.50.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all revenue and expenses not related to
capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing activities.

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both governmental and
business-type activities.

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are classified as follows:
Governmental Funds - By Character: Current (further classified by function)

Debt Service
Capital Outlay
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Proprietary Fund - By Operating and Non-Operating

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. Proprietary
funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources.

F. Internal and Interfund Balances and Activities

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide Statement of Net Assets
and Statement of Activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund
financial statements have been eliminated or reclassified.

Fund Financial Statements:

Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprietary fund categories is reported
as follows in the fund financial statements:

1. Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as
interfund receivables and payables.

2. Interfund services - sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as
revenues and expenditures/expenses.

3. Interfund reimbursements - rtepayments from funds responsible for certain
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as
reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective funds.

4. Interfund transfers - flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not
expected are reported as transfers in and out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial
statements as follows:

1. Internal balances - amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund
receivables and payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities
columns of the Statement of Net Assets, except for the net residual amounts due between
governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Internal Balances.

2. Internal activities - amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements
are eliminated in the government-wide Statement of Activities except for the net amount of
transfers between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as
Transfers - Internal Activities. The effect of interfund services between funds, if any, are
not eliminated in the Statement of Activities.
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G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures;
accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

For the purpose of the statements of net assets, balance sheets, and statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts, certificates of deposit or short-term

investments with an original maturity of three-months or less and money market accounts.

At June 30, 2012, the reporting entity held the following deposits and investments:

Primary Government:
Carrying
Type Maturities Rating Value
Deposits:
Demand deposits $ 9213222
Cash on hand 250
Time deposit Due within 1 year 16,393,666
25,607,138
Investments:
Goldman Sachs FS Tax Fund #0477 Aaa-mf 56
Cavanal Hill Cash MG Fund #0051 Asaa-mf 831,497
Cavanal Hill US Treas-Admin #0002 Aaa-mf 30,536
862,089
Total deposits and investments $ 26,469,227

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,075,561
Investments 16,393,666

$ 26,469,227

Custodial Credit Risk — Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds
deposits that are uninsured and uncollateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution,
or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name, or collateralized without a written or
approved collateral agreement. Exposure to custodial credit risk related to investments exists when the
City holds investments that are uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty or by
its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

The City’s policy as it relates to custodial credit risk is to secure its uninsured deposits with collateral,
valued at no more than market value, at least af a level of 110% of the uninsured deposits and accrued
interest thereon. At June 30, 2012, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

41



CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Investment Credit Risk - The City has no investment policy that limits its investment choices other than
the limitation of state law as follows:

a. Direct obligations of the U. S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which the full
faith and credit of the U. S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full
faith and credit of the State is pledged.

b. Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable
collateral with in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings
accounts in out-of-state financial institutions.

¢. Federally insured certificates of deposit issued through the Certificate of Deposit Account
Registry Service (“CDARS”) by financial institutions located in the United States, provided that (i}
the funds are initially invested through a financial institution that is participating in CDARS (ii)the
financial institution received reciprocal deposits from customers of other financial institutions in an
amount equal to the funds initially invested; and (iii) each such certificate of deposit is in an amount
that is eligible for full FDIC insurance coverage.

As noted in the schedule of deposits and investments above at June 30, 2012, all of the City’s
investments in debt securities were rated Aaa-mf by Moody’s.

Investment Interest Rate Risk - the City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - the City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one
issuer. Since the City has all investments in certificates of deposit, government securities, or money
market accounts, there is no concentration of investment credit risk exposure.

Restricted Cash and Investments — The amounts reported as restricted assets of the proprietary fund
statement of net assets are comprised of amounts restricted for debt service, debt reserve, construction
purposes, worker’s compensation escrow and Public Works Authority customer utility deposits. The
restricted assets as of June 30, 2012 are as follows:

Current Noncurrent
Cash and cash Cash and cash
equivalents equivalents Investments
Series 2002 Revenue Bond Account s 56 5 - $ -
Series 2002 Reserve Account 476,112
Series 2002 Sinking Fund Account 3
2009 OWRB DWSRF Construction Account 30,536
Series 1994 Sinking Account 14 . -
Series 1994 Reserve Account - 355,368 -
BPWA Debt Service CDs - 704,512
Worker's Comp Escrow 4,478
Meter deposits 17,303 460,018
Total $ 35,087 $ 848,783 $1,164,530
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3. Accounts and Notes Receivable

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consist of customers utilities
services provided, both billed and unbilled, due at year end, reported net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts. The governmental activities receivables include fines receivables.

Less: Allowance Net
Accounts for Uncollectible Accounts
Receivable Accounts Receivable
Governmental Activities:
Franchise taxes $ 91,464 § . $ 91,464
Court fines 1,142,827 (571,200) 571,627
Ambulance fees 34,021 - 34,021
Stormwater 45,829 : 45,829
Other taxes 29,373 - 29,373
Total Governmental Activities 3 1343514 § (571,200) §$ 772,314
Business-Type Activities:
Utilities $ 1604386 § (154,877) § 1,449,509

4. Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital Assets:

Capital assets consist of land, land improvement, construction in progress, buildings and building
improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure. Capital assets are reported at actual or

estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of donation.
For the year ended June 30, 2012, capital assets balances changed as follows;
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Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure

Machinery, furniture and equipment
Total other capital assets at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure

Machinery, furniture and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activitles:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Other capital assets:

Buildings and improvements

Machinery, fumiture and equipment

Infrastructure

Total other capital assets at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements

Machinery, furniture and equipment

Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Restated
Balance at Balance at
July 01,2011 Additions Disposals June 30, 2012
:) 13,026,246 $ 628,575 $ - 13,654,821
12,349,873 8,352,038 9,454,838 11,247,073
25,376,119 8,980,613 9,454,838 24,901,894
4,499,590 60,853 - 4,560,443
44,188,211 9,669,270 - 53,857,481
9,636,676 513,174 219,083 9,930,767
58,324,477 10,243,297 219,083 68,348,691
1,226,755 104,067 1,330,822
17.820,490 1,615,667 . 19,436,157
6,174,629 815,127 193,562 6,796,194
25,221,875 2,534,860 193,562 27,563,173
33,102,602 7,708,437 25,521 40,785,518
$ 58,478,721 $ 16,689,050 $ 9,480,359 65,687,412
b 488,651 $ - $ - 488,651
909,841 4,412,109 5,182,551 139,399
1,398,492 4,412,109 5,182,551 628,050
1,503,905 6,648 . 1,510,553
1,886,398 4,282 12,355 1,878,326
50,472,042 5,209,242 85,955 55,595,329
53,862,345 5,220,172 98,310 58,984,208
731,252 53,312 - 784,564
1,587,804 81,988 12,355 1,657,437
10,634,721 847,389 1,313 11,480,797
12,953,777 982,650 13,668 13,922,799
40,908,568 4,237,482 84,642 45,061,409
$ 42,307,060 $ 8,649,591 $ 5,267,193 45,689,458

Depreciation of capital assets is included in total expenses and is charged or allocated to the activities
primarily benefiting from the use of the specific asset. Depreciation expense has been allocated as

follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government
Public safety

Streets

Culture and recreation
Cemetery

$ 1,075,551
566,635
699,437
181,445

11,792

$ 2,534,860

44

Business-Type Activities:

Water $ 375,250
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Administration 25,578
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5. Long-Term Debt and Debt Service Requirements

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the reporting entity’s long-term debt changed as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
Type of Debt July 1,2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012 One Year
Gowrnmental Activities:
General obligation bonds 3 28250000 § - § 1950000 % 26,300,000 § 2,640,000
Capital Iease payable 555,405 - 344,457 210,948 108,913
Accrued compensated absences 703,005 128,423 - 831,428 166,286
Total Governmental Activities $§ 20508410 § 128423 § 2204457 § 27,342& $ 2,915,199
Business-Type Activities;
Revenue bonds payable § 5,985,000 $ - § 2675000 § 3,310,000 $ 355,000
Notes Payable 4,093,834 4,715,595 761,576 8,047,853 718,761
Deposits Subject te Refund 467,512 9,809 . 477,321 47,633
Accrued compensated absences 109,184 - 4375 104,809 20,962
Total Business-Type Activities 10,655,530 4,725,404 3,440,951 11,939,983 1,142,356
Total Long-Term Debt $ 40,163,940 § 41853827 $ 5735408 § 36,282,359 § 4,057,555
Reconciliation to S tatement of Net Assets:
Gowrnmental Actlvities:
Dae within one year $ 2,915,199
Due in more than one year 24,497,230
Less unamortized bond premizm (70,053)
Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Liabilities $ 27,342,376
Business-Type Activities:
Due within one year $ 1,142,356
Due in more than one year 10,692,911
Add back unamortized charge on refunding and discount 104,716
Total Business-Type Activities Long-Term Liabilities $ 11,939,983

Governmental activities long-term debt:

Capital Lease Obligations:
$218,811 leasc obligation for the purchase of a 2001 Pierce Custom Contender, payable in annual
installments of $22,958 with an annual interest rate of 5 4%, final payment due June 2014. $ 42,353
$561,649 lease obligation for purchase of 2008 Pierce Pumper, payable in monthly installments of
$12,560 with an annual interest rete of 3.5%, final payment due November 2012 62,179
$135,5239 lease obligation for purchase of 2 new mowers, payable in monthly installments of $2,508
with an annual interest rate of 4.25%, final payment due April 2016. 106,416
Total Capital Leascs Payable $ 210,948
Current portion § 108,913
Noncurrent portion 102,035
Total Capital Leases Payable $ 210,048
=
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General Obligation Bonds Payable:

$4,010,000 General Obligation Bonds of 1999, due in annual installments of $21,000 with an
annual interest rate between 4.90% and 8.75%, final payment due November 2019. $ 1,700,000

$2,999,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2000, due in annual installments of $270,000 with an
annual interest rate between 4.60% and 8.0%, final payment due November 2012. 290,000

$6,600,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2006, due in annual instailments of $475,000 with an
annual interest rate between 3.70% and 5.50%, final payment due June 2021. 4,275,000

$7,000,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2007, due in annual installments of $500,000 with an
annual interest rate between 3.65% and 3.95%, final payment due June 2022. 5,000,000

$6,400,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2008, duc in annual installments of $455,000 with an
annual interest rate between 3.00% and 4.10%, final payment due June 2023. 5,035,000

$10,000,000 General Obligation Bonds of 2011, due in anmual installments of $710,000 and a

final installment of $770,000 with an annual interest rate between 2.00% and 4.00%, final

payment due June 2026. 10,000,000
Total Notes Payable _§ 26,300,000

Current portion  $ 2,640,000
Noncurrent pottion 23,660,000
Total Notes Payable S 26,300,000

Accrued Compensated Absences:

Current portion 166,286
Noncurrent portion 665,142
Total Accrued Compensated Absences  § 831,428
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Business-type activities long-term debt:
Notes Payable:

1998 CWSRF Note Payable to Oklahoma Water Resources Board dated November 18, 1998,
original amount of $4,938,787 with an annual interest rate of 3.22% due in semi-annual
installments of principal and interest beginning September 15, 2001, final installment due
March 15, 2021, payable from and secured by utility revenues. $ 2,525,544

2009 DWSRF Note Payable to Oklahoma Water Resources Board dated November 19, 2009,
original amount of $2,160,000 with an annual interest rate of 3.23% duec in semi-annual
installments of principal and interest beginning March 15, 2011, final installment dnoe
September 15, 2030, payable from and secured by utility revenues. 1,258,401

2011 CWSRF Note Payable to Oklahoma Water Resources Board dated June 15, 2011, original
amount of $2,860,000 with an annual interest rate of 2.7% due in semi-anmual installments of
principal and interest beginning September 15, 2012, final installment due March 15, 2032,
payable from and secured by utility revenues. 2,204,998

Revolving Note Payable to Oklahoma Department of Commerce dated June 30, 2001, original
amount of $69,466 due in monthly installments of $386, final installment due July 2016. 18,910

2011 Series Refunding Note original issue amount of $2,075,000, dated October 27, 2011,
issued by Bixby Public Works Authority, secured by pledged sales tax, and a security interest in
the personal property used in conjunction with the water and sewer systems, interest rate of

1.87%, final maturity May 1, 2019. 2,040,000
Total Notes Payable $ 8,047,853
=
Current portion  § 718,761
Noncurrent portion 7,329,092
Total Notes Payable 3 8,047,853
Revenue Bonds Payable:

2002 Refunding Series Utility System Revenue Bonds original issue amount of $6,080,000,
dated August 1, 2002, issued by Bixby Public Works Authority, secured by certain utility
revenue and pledged sales tax, and a security interest in the personal property used in
conjunction with the water and sewer systems, interest rates from 2.45% to 7.00%, final
maturity November 1, 2019, 3 3,310,000
Total Revenue Bonds Payable $ 3,310,000
Less: Unamortized Charge on Refunding (104,716)
Net Revenue Bonds Payable $ 3!205,284

Current portion  § 355,000
Noncurrent portion 2,850,284
Total Revenue Bonds Payable $ 3,205,284
Deposits subject to Refund:
Current portion  $ 47,633
Noncurrent portion 429,688
Total Deposits Subject to Refund  § 477,321
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Accrued Compensated Absences:
Current portion  § 20,962
Noncurrent portion 83,847
Total Accrued Compensated Absences _§ 104,309

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity:

Governmental Activities

Year Ending June 30, General Capital
Obligation Bonds Lease obligations
Principal Interest Principal Intercst
2013 $ 2,640,000 $ 911,851 $ 108,913 $ 63872
2014 2,350,000 829,379 48,999 4,060
2015 2,350,000 753,576 28,417 1,684
2016 2,350,000 677,095 24,619 476
2017 2,350,000 599,580 - .
2018-2022 10,875,000 1,760,338 -
2023-2026 3,385,000 306,948 - -
Totals $ 26,300,000 $ 5,838,767 $ 210,948 $ 13,092

Business-tvpe Activities

Year Ending June 30, Revenue
Bonds Payable Notes Payable
Principal Interest Principal Interest

2013 $ 355,000 b 133,217 $ 718,761 $ 196,568
2014 370,000 118,895 733,513 198,737
2015 390,000 103,695 748,586 181,109
2016 405,000 87,593 763,749 163,265
2017 420,000 70,470 775,485 144,682
2018-2022 1,370,000 94,050 2,860,576 456,636
2023-2027 . 1,087,772 221,030
2028-2032 - - 1,014,412 70,273
Totals $ 3,310,000 5 607,920 % 8,702,854 § 1,632,300

Less: Amount not drawn down (655,001)
§ 8047853

Advance Refunding

On October 27, 2011 the City issued $2,075,000 Promissory Note, Refunding Series 2011 with an
interest rate of 1.87% to advance refund $2,330,000 Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001. The
net proceeds of $2,025,500 plus an additional $364,996 taken from the debt service and reserves fund
were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service
payments of the Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2001. Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series
2001 were paid in full by June 30, 2012.
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The advanced refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $60,496. This difference was charged to operations in the current year. The
City completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next nine years
by $248,275 and to obtain an economic gain (the difference between the present values of the old and

new debt service payments) of $255,142.

6. Fund Equity

The following tables show the fund balance classifications as shown in the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet in accordance with GASB Statement 54 and Proprietary Fund Statement of Net

Assets:

Water and sewer mainténance
Sub-totel Restricted
Asgigned to:

Funds due employees
Disaster recovery contigency
Technology and systems
FYi3 operations

Litigation contingency

E ic development contingency
Transfers to other funds
HVAC

Sales tax rebate - Regal Plaza
Tuvenile court fines

Rural fire

Fishing activities

Cetetery maintenance
Cemetery beautification

Sewer gystem improvements
Stormwater systern
‘Water and sewer maintenance
Sub-total Assigned
Unassigned:

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

Major Debt
Major Capital Project Funds Service Fund - Other
General Citizen's 2008 2011 Debt Service | Govemmental | TOTAL

Fund Planned Fund | Bond Fund Bond Fund Fund Funds
- - 328,484 328,484
- 7,627,691 7,627,601
- . 1491,152 1,624,459 3,115,611
25,088 25,088
101,859 101,359
. - 743,089 745,089
- 38,408 38,408
483,781 483,781
: - 270,295 270,295
3,878,396 - ¥ 3,878,396
507,786 507,786
3,878,396 - 7:627,691 1,481,152 4125249  17,122488
1,178,758 1,178,755
374,042 874,942
250,000 250,000
200,000 200,000
12,325 - 12,325
50,000 . 50,000
200,000 . - 200,000
140,000 v - 140,000
125,000 - 125,000
391,430 391,430
59,000 - - 59,000
1,692 1,692
64,476 - 64,476
45,480 45,480
1323 - - 1323
. - - - 16,123 16,123
52459 - 52459
49,119 5301 54420
- 209,271 209,271
- 2,480 2480
- 397,357 397,397
97,986 97,986
- 407,596 407,596
36,954 - 36,954
214,358 214,358
- - - 5 - 540,031 340,031
3,594,423 36,954 - 52,459 49,119 1,890,543 5,623,498
390,886 - - - - - 390,886
3,985,300 $§ 3915350 § -5 7680150 5 1540371 § 6015792 5 23,136,872
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Enterprise Funds:
Restricted For Debt Service $ 1,445,675

Net asset restrictions are as follows:

State Enabling Contractual
Statutes _Legislation Agreements Total
Governmental Activities:
Capital Projects:
Stormwater management $ . 5 507,786 $ - 507,786
Street and Alley Fund 328,484 - - 328,484
Economic Development - - 38,408 38,408
Capital Improvement Fund - 1,051,248 1,051,248
Sub-total Capital Projects 328,484 507,786 1,089,656 1,925,926
Debt Service:
2006 Debt Service Fund 1,624,459 - 1,624,459
Debt Service Fund 1,503,347 - . 1,503,347
Sub-total Debt Service 3,127,806 - - 3,127,806
Other
E911 Fund 483,781 - - 483,781
Cemetery Care Fund 101,859 - - 101,859
Sub-total Other 585,640 - - 585,640
Total Governmental Activities 4,041,930 507,786 1,089,656 5,639,372
Business-Type Activities:
Revenue Bond Trustee Accounts - 540,031 5,361,025 5,901,056
TOTAL RESTRICTED NET ASSETS $ 4,041,930 $ 1,047,817 $ 6,450,681 11,540,428

Beginning balances/net assets were restated as of July 1, 2011 as follows:

Government-
Wide
Governmental
Activities
Beginning net asscts, as previously reported $ 51,576,932
Understatement of capital assets 3,132,621
Beginning net assets, restated S 54,709,553

7. Internal and Interfund Balances and Transfers

The City’s policy is to eliminate interfund transfers and balances in the statements of activities and
net assets to avoid the grossing up of balances. Only the residual balances transferred between
governmental and business-type activities are reported as internal transfers and internal balances
and then offset in the total column in the government-wide statements. Interfund transfers and

balances between funds are not eliminated in the fund financial statements.
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Transfers:

Internal transfers between funds and activities for the year ended June 30, 2012 were as follows:

Trassfer From Transfer To Amownt Purpose of Transfer
E911 General Fund $ 60,000  Operations
E911 General Fond 1,747 Dsbt service
General Fond Cemetery Mamtenance Fund 50,000  Operations
General Fund Economic Development Fund 20,000 Operations
General Fund Park Fund 100,000 Operations
Street and Alley Fund 2008 Bond Fund 418,793 Capital expenditures
Capital Improvement Fund Rural Fire Fund 7,000 Reimburse expenses
Citizen's Plammed Fund BPWA 917,501  Debt service
Citizen'’s Planned Fund ‘Water and Sewer Development 428,000 Operations
Storrrwater Management Fund Fry Creek Maintenance Fund 190,000 Transfer funding
Stormwater Managemeat Fund Capital Improvement Fund 12871  Reimburse expenses
BPWA ‘Water and Sewer Development 3,215,595 Loan proceeds
BPWA Water and Sewer Development 4436,858 Capital expenditores
Water and Sewer Development BPWA 500 Trustes fees
Water and Sewer Development 2008 Bond Fund 263,304 Capital expenditures
2007 Bond Fund 2008 Bond Fund 92209 Reclass of prior year reimbursement
2008 Bond Fund Water and Sewer Development 44 Interest
Total $ 10914422
Reconcilintion te Fand Financial Statements: Reconciliation - BTA - Reconciliation Reconciliation
Transfers In Transfers Out Special Revenue Funda Sales tax reclass ital Aseet Tranafer Net Transiers
Govemnmental Funds 8 5,556,563 §  (7698827) § 2402524 § (1,573,988) 13 259,090 § (1,051,638)
Proprictary Funds 5,354,850 3,215,595) (2,402,534 1,573,988 (255,000) 1,051,638
$ 10!914‘422 [ ! l0|914£2! £ - $ - - -
Balances:

Interfund receivable and payables at June 30, 2012 were comprised of the following;

Drue From Due To Amount Nature of Balance
General Fund Stormwater Managetnent § 28,015 Expense reimbursement
General Fund BPWA 52,086 Correct deposit
General Fand Debt Service Fund 58 Correct deposit
General Fund 2002 Revemne Bonds Fund 68,856 Correct deposit
E911 General Fund 13,585 Correct deposit
Meter Deposit BPWA 13,182 Meter deposiis
Cemetery Maintenance General Fund 578 Fuel usage
‘Water and Sewer Development General Fund 65,250 Grant money
Economic Development General Fund 9,374 Correct deposit
Capital Improvement Fund General Fund 570 Correct deposit
Capital Improvement Fund 2011 Bond Fond 6,420 Correct deposit
BPWA Stormwater Management 7,650 Split deposit
BPWA ‘Water and Sewer Davelopment Fund 215 Split deposit
BPWA Debt Service Fund 415 Split deposit
Park Fond General Fumd 8,684 Fuel usage
2008 Bond Fund Water and Sewer Development Fund 44 Correct deposit
Fishing License Fund General Fund 40 Cotrect deposit
Total 3 275,022
Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements: Reconciliation
Due From Due To BTA - Special Revenue Fends Net Internal Balances
Governmental Funds $ 140,898 §  (253,560) s 64,991 H (47,671)
Proprietary Funds 134,124 (21.462) (64.991) 47,671
Total $ 275,022 [ (275,022) [ - 5 -

8. Pledged Future Revenues

Sales Tax and Utility Net Revenues Pledge - The City has pledged one cent (or 28.6%) of future
sales tax revenues and net utility revenues to repay $6,080,000 of the 2002 Refunding Series Utility

System Revenue Bonds and $2,075,000 of the Promissory Note, Refunding Series 2011. Proceeds
from the bonds provided for the purchase or construction of water and sewer systems. The bonds
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are payable from pledged sales tax revenues and net water and sewer utility revenues. These bonds
are both payable through 2019. The total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life
of these bonds is $6,104,154. Pledged sales taxes received in the current year were $2,098,652 and
net water and sewer utility revenues were $1,489,135 for total pledged revenues of $3,587,787.
Debt service payments of $608,690 for the current fiscal year were 17% of total pledged revenues
for these bonds.

Utility Net Revenues Pledge — The City has also pledged the net water and sewer utility revenues
to repay the following notes payable: $4,938,787 of 1998 CWSRF, $2,160,000 of 2009 DWSRF
and $2,860,000 of 2011 CWSRF Oklahoma Water Resources Board Notes Payable. Proceeds
from the bonds provided for the purchase or construction of water and sewer systems. The bonds
are payable from pledged net water and sewer utility revenues through 2021, 2030 and 2032,
respectively. The total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of these notes
is $8,130,010. Pledged net water and utility revenues in the current fiscal year were $1,489,135.
Debt service payments of $856,278 for the current fiscal year were 57.5% of total pledged
revenues for these notes.

9. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health and life; and natural
disasters. The City manages these various risks of loss as follows:

e General Liability and Physical Property — Covered through participation in Oklahoma
Municipal Assurance Group risk entity pool (1)

o Worker’s Compensation — Worker’s compensation is covered through participation in the
Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group risk entity pool (2)

(1} Liability Protection Plan

The basic insurance agreements cover claims against municipalities for all government functions,
utilities, and services covered in the Plan. These include bodily injury, property damage, wrongful
acts, personal injury, and related torts under the state tort claims law and federal civil rights laws.
All public officials, employees, services, and municipal functions are covered unless they are
specifically listed as exclusions in the Plan.

The title to all assets acquired by the Plan are vested in the Group. In the event of termination of
the Group, such property shall belong to the then members of the Group in equal shares. Each
participating City pays all costs, premiums, or other fees attributable to its respective participation
in the Plan, and is responsible for its obligation under any contract entered into with the Plan.

Reserves for claim losses include provisions for reported claims on a case basis and an estimate of
claims incurred but not reported limited by aggregate and individual loss levels as specified by the
Plan's reinsurance contracts. These credits, if any, represent contingent liabilities of the Plan if the
reinsurer was unable to meet its obligations under the reinsurance agreement.
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The Plan's insurance agreements are reinsured for excess losses based upon the contract year. The
significant components of each reinsurance contract can be obtained from the Plan's annual
financial report.

(2) Worker's Compensation

The title to all assets acquired by the Plan are vested in the Plan. In the event of termination of the
Plan, such property shall belong to the then members of the Plan in equal shares. Each participating
city pays for all costs, premiums, or other fees attributable to its respective participation in the Plan,
policy or service established under the agreement establishing the Oklahoma Municipal Assurance
Group, and is responsible for its obligations under any contract entered into with the Plan.

Specific aggregate stop loss coverage is provided by Comp Source.

Reserves for policy and contract claims provide for reported claims on a case basis and a provision
for incurred but not reported claims limited to specific retention levels for each member as outlined
in the Plan’s reinsurance agreement.

The Plan worker’s compensation coverage is reinsured for losses in excess of respective retention
levels. The reinsurance agreement covers losses incurred within the effective period of the
agreement. Each Plan member’s liability for claims losses is limited to their individual retention
levels as outlined in the Plan’s reinsurance agreement.

Management believes the insurance coverage listed above is sufficient to preclude any
significant uninsured losses to the City, Settled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage
in any of the past three fiscal years.

10. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation:

The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of
governmental operations. The financial statements do not include accruals or provisions for loss
contingencies that may result from these proceedings. State statutes provide for the levy of an ad
valorem tax over a three-year period by a City Sinking Fund for the payment of any court
assessed judgment rendered against the City. While the outcome of the above noted proceedings
cannot be predicted, due to the insurance coverage maintained by the City and the State statute
relating to judgments, the City feels that any settlement or judgment not covered by insurance
would not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.
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Federal and State Award Programs:

The City of Bixby participates in various federal or state grant/loan programs from year to year.
In 2012, the City’s involvement in federal and state award programs was material. The grant/loan
programs are often subject to additional audits by agents of the granting or loaning agency, the
purpose of which is to ensure compliance with the specific conditions of the grant or loan. The
City has not been notified of any noncompliance with federal or state award requirements, Any
liability for reimbursement which may arise as a result of these audits cannot be reasonably
determined at this time, although it is believed the amount, if any, would not be material.

Non-cancelable Operating Leases:

The City has a lease with the City of Tulsa for the purchase of water. The lease is based on a
price per gallon. Purchases were approximately $3,384,000 during the year.

Construction Commitments:

The following construction contracts were outstanding and payable at June 30, 2012:

Amount
Project by Activity Qutstanding
Public Safety $ 433,465
Streets $ 346,874
Water and Sewer Projects S 124,850

11. Pension Plan Participation
The City of Bixby participates in four pension or retirement plans:

o Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS) - a statewide cost-
sharing plan.

e Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System (OPPRS) — a statewide cost-sharing
plan.
Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) — a statewide cost-sharing plan,

e Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund — an agent multiple-employer defined contribution
plan.

Firefighters’ Plan:

Pursuant to the requirements of Title 11, section 49-102, the City of Bixby participates in the statewide
cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan administered by the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension
Board on behalf of both paid and volunteer firefighters. The paid firefighter contributes 8% to the plan.
The City is required by state law to contribute 13% per year per paid firefighter to the statewide plan.
The plan is funded by contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state
appropriations, as necessary.

A copy of the Firefighters Statewide Pension Plan financial statements can be obtained from the
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension System, 4545 Lincoln Blvd. Suite 263, Oklahoma City, OK, 73105-3707.
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Police Plan:

Pursuant to the requirements of Title 11, section 50-102, the City of Bixby participates in the statewide
cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan administered by the Oklahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System (OPPRS). The paid police person contributes 8% to the plan. The City is required by
state law to contribute 13% per year per paid police person to the statewide plan. The plan is funded by
contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as
necessary.

The OPPRS issues a publicly available report that includes financial statements, which can be
obtained from the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System, 1001 N.W. 63™ Street, Oklahoma
City, OK, 73116-7335.

Employees Plan:

The City provides a pension benefit for all of its full-time employees with the exception of the police and
fire departments, through the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). The
employee’s contribution rate is 3.5%. The City’s contribution rate is 16.5%. The plan is funded by
contributions from participating employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as
necessary.

A copy of OPERS financial statements can be obtained from the Oklahoma Public Employees Retirement
System, 2101 N. Lincoln Blvd., Room 580, Oklahoma City, OK, 73105.

Summary of Contributions — Cost Sharing Plans:

Cklahoma Firefighter's Pension Oldahoma Police Pension Oklakoma Public

and Retirement System and Retirement System _ Employees Retirement System
Fiscal Required Percentage Fiscal Required Percentage Fiscal Required Percentage
Year Contribution Contributed Year Coniribution Contributed Year Contribution Contributed
2019 $ 129,707 100% 2010 H 137,583 100% 2010 $ 315455 100%
2011 ) 120,467 100% 2011 $ 131,369 100% 2011 $ 335980 100%
2012 $ 130,366 100% 2012 - 130,198 100% 2012 § 361,636 100%%

The state made on-behalf payments of $115,913 for the police pension system and $278,775 for the fire
pension during the current fiscal year. These are reported as both intergovernmental revenues and public
safety expenses.

OMRF Plans:

The City has also provided for two defined contribution plans with the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement
Fund. The plan’s custodian is JP Morgan Chase Bank. According to state law, the authority for
establishing or amending the plan’s provisions rests with the City Council.

In both plans, the plan participant is the City Manager. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend
solely on amounts contributed to the plan, investment earnings, and forfeitures may or may not be
allocated to such participant's account. The City adopted variable funding plans where the contribution
rate may be varied from year to year by the employer.
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In the first plan: The City Manager vests at service inception and is entitled to 100% of contributions.
The budgeted contribution rate for this plan was 2% of annual covered payroll. The City Manager is
permitted to make voluntary after-tax contributions which was 0% of annual covered payroll.

In the second plan: The City Manager vests after 4 years from his hire date of May 22, 2010. The
budgeted rate was based on contractual terms where the City contributes 4.75% of the City Manager’s
annual base salary at the conclusion of each year served. The City Manager is permitted to make
voluntary after-tax contributions. No such election was made.

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the following amounts related to both defined contribution plans were:

Payroll for covered employees § 153,976
Employer (City) contributions $ 10,415

12. Subsequent Events

On July 23, 2012, the BPWA approved the awarding of the Bixby Public Works Authority Utility System
Revenue Promissory Note, Refunding Series 2012 to JP Morgan Chase Bank at the interest rate of
1.43%, principal amount of $5,255,000. This is to refund the Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002
and the 1998 CWSRF Note Payable.
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__ REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Budgetarv Comparison Schedule (Budgetary Basis) — Year Ended June 30, 2012

General Fund
Variance with
Actusl Amounts, Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary Basis Positive {Nepative
Original Final
Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance: $ 2,319,232 § 2,319,232 $ 3,106,254 $ 787,022
Resources (Inflows):
Sales and use tax 3,914,299 3,914,299 4,157,303 283,004
Franchise and miscellancous taxes 319,500 819,500 934,968 115,468
Intergovernmental 197,000 197,000 206,655 9,655
Licenses and permits 300,700 300,700 326,095 25,395
Charges for services 223,000 223,000 237,585 14,585
Fines & forfeitures 650,000 661,403 783,458 122,055
Investment earnings 12,000 12,000 10,179 (1,821}
Miscellaneous 201,000 233,965 327,082 93,117
Transfer in 60,000 60,000 1,747 (58,253)
Total resources (Inflows) 6,377,499 6,421,867 7,025,072 603,205
Amounts available for appropriation 8,696,731 8,741,099 10,131,326 1,390,227
Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Administration 371,667 407,088 386,390 20,198
Aftorney 48,810 92,072 94,764 (2,692)
Municipal court 84,605 100,409 98,679 1,730
Community service 5,005 5,005 3,757 1,248
General government 1,209,224 1,211,346 775,784 435,562
Police 2,287,550 2,353,213 2,388,391 (35,678)
Fire 1,759,330 1,776,319 1,737,916 38,403
Emergency Management 35,634 35,634 26,061 9,573
Streets 461,818 486,920 435,082 1,338
Park 50,761 50,761 30,240 20,521
Cemetery 62,442 63,866 60,924 2,942
Transfers out 90,000 170,000 170,000 -
Total Charges to Appropriations 6,466,346 6,752,633 6,258,988 493 645
Fund balances - ending ;) 2,229 885 $ 1,988,466 $ 3,872,338 $ 1,883,872
Reconciliation to Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in Fund Balance:
Rural Fire Fund Balance 1,692
Fishing License Fund Balance 64,476
Cemetery Beautification Fund Balance 1,323
Cemetery Maintenance Fund Balance 45,480
Total General Fund Fund Balance S 3,985,309

Footnotes to Budgetary Comparison Schedules:

1. The budgetary comparison schedule is reported on a GAAP basis using the modified accruai
basis with the exception of on-behalf payments made by the state related to firefighter and
police pension and capital lease proceeds.

2. The legal level of appropriation control is the department level within a fund. Transfers of
appropriation within a fund require the approval of the City Manager. All supplemental
appropriations require the approval of the City Council. Supplemental appropriations must
be filed with the Office of the State Auditor and Inspector.
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3. The budgetary basis differs from the modified accrual basis as shown in the schedule below:

General
Fund
Total revenue - budgetary basis 5 7,025,072
On-behalf revenue 394,688
Total revenue - GAAP basis 3 7.419,760
Total expenditures - budgetary basis 6,258,988
On-behalf expenses 394,688
Total expenses - GAAP basis $ 6,653,676

4. In the General Fund the City had a negative variance in the following departments:

General Fund — Attorney $ 2,692
General Fund — Police $ 35,678
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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Combining Balance Sheet — General Fund Accounts — June 30, 2012

Fishing Cematery Cemetery
General Rural Fire License Beautification Maintenance
Eund Account Account Account Acgount Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,171,189 $ 1,692 $ 28,208 3 1,373 $ 54,440 $ 2,256,902
Investments 1,287,337 - 36,388 - - 1,323,725
Receivable from other governments 608,713 - - - 608,713
Due from other funds 98,081 - - . 98,081
Taxes receivable, net 91,464 - 91,464
Court fines receivable, net 571,200 - - 571,200
Ambulance receivable, net 14,038 - 14,038
Other receivables 25,504 - - - - 25,504
Total assets $ 4.8675526 $ 1& $ 64,596 3 1,373 $ 654,440 [] 4|989.627
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Actounts payable $ 13599 $ - $ 80 $ 50 $ 8,382 $ 144,510
Accrued payroll 192,435 - - - 192,435
Due to cther funds 149,015 40 - 578 149,633
Dus to bondholders 54,420 - 54,420
Deferred revenue 456,764 - - - 456,764
Cther payables 8,556 - - - - 8,566
Total liabllities 985,188 - 120 50 8,980 1,004,318
Fund balances:
Assigned 3,481,452 1,692 64,476 1,323 45,480 3,594,423
Unassigned 390,886 - - - - 390,886
Total fund balances 3,872,338 1,692 64,476 1,323 45,480 3,985,308
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 4,867,526 $ 1,692 $ 64,596 $ 1,373 $ 54,440 $ 4,989,627
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance — General Fund
Accounts — For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Fishing Cemetery Cemetery
Rural Firg License Beautification Maintgnance
General Fund Account Account Account Account Total

REVENUES
Sales and use tax $ 4,197,303 $ - $ - § - $ - $ 4,197,303
Franchise and miscellaneous taxes 874,968 - 874,968
Intergovemnmeantal 601,343 - - 601,343
Licenses and permits 326,095 8,904 - 334,999
Charges for services 237,585 17,650 50 20,720 276,005
Fines & forfeitures 783,458 - - - 783,458
Investmant aarnings 10,179 190 112 10,481
Miscellaneous 327,082 - - - - 327,082
Total revenues 7,358,013 17,650 9,054 50 20,832 7,405,639
EXPENDITURES
Administration 386,890 - - 386,890
Clty attomey 04,764 94,764
Municipal court 98,679 - 98,679
Community service 3,757 3,757
General government 775,784 - 775,784
Police 2,474,505 - - 2,474,505
Fire 2,010,811 - - 2,010,811
Emergency Management 26,061 - - 26,081
Streets 476,224 . - 476,224
Culture and recreation 9,422 9,913 - - 19,335
Cemetery 60,924 . 100 61,758 122,782
Capltal Qutiay 45,037 - - - 45,037
Debt Service:

Principal 15,807 19,518 35,325

Interest and other charges 5,011 3,440 - - - 8,451
Total Expenditures 6,483,676 22,958 9,913 100 61,758 6,578,405
Excess {deficiency) of revenyes over
axpenditures 874,337 (5,308) (B19) (50) {40,926) 827,234
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 61,747 7,000 - 50,000 118,747
Transfers out (170,000) N - - - {170,000}
Total other financing sources and uses (108,253) 7,000 - - 50,000 {51,263}
Net change in fund balances 766,084 1,682 (819) (50) 9,074 775,881
Fund balances - baginning 3,106,254 - 65,295 1,373 36,406 3,208,328
Fund balances - ending § 3,872,338 $ 1,692 $ 64,476 [ 1,323 $ 45,480 $ 3,985,309
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Combining Schedule of Net Assets — Enterprise Fund Accounts — June 30,2012

2002 Utllity
Revenue Bond
Meter Deposit DAWES Constrution
BPWA Accoynt Account Account Total
ASBETS

Current assats:
Cash and caeh equivalents $ 1,231,176 $ 76,296 $ 15,621 $ - § 1,323,093
Investments E 102,678 - - 102,679
Restrictad:

Cash and cash equlvalents 35,031 - - 56 35,087
Due from other funds 65,268 - - 68,856 134,124
Accounts Receivable, nat 1,448,509 - - - 1,449,509

Total current assets 2,780,984 178,975 15,621 68,912 3,044,492
Non-current assets:

Restricted:;
Cash and cash equivalents 831,480 17,303 - - 848,783
Investmants 704,512 460,018 . - 1,164,530
Capital Assets:
Land and consfruction in progress 583,050 - 35,000 - 628,050
Other capital assets,net of accumulated depreciation 44,574 257 - 487,152 - 45,061,409
Unamortized debt Issue costs 341,208 - - - 341,208
Total non-current assets 47,044,507 477,321 522,152 - 48,043 980
Total assets 49825491 656,296 537,773 68912 51,088,472
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accaunts payable 452,831 - 452,631
Payroll payable 40,797 - - - 40,797
Accrued interest payable 90,334 - - - 90,334
Due to other funds 8,280 13,182 - - 21,462
Deposits subject to refund . 47,833 - . 47,633
Compensated absences 20,962 - - 20,962
Notes payable 718,761 - - - 718,761
Bonds payable 355,000 - = - 355,000
Total cument liabMlies 1,686,785 60,81 - - 1,747,580
Non-current kablities:
Compengated absences 83.847 - - - 83,847
Deposits subject to refund - 429,668 - - 429,688
Notes payable 7,329,092 - - - 7,329,092
Bonds payable 2,850,284 - - - 2,850,284
Total non-current liabllities 10,263,223 420,688 - - 10,692,911
Total llablities 11,949,958 490,503 - - 12,440 491
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 33,944,762 - 522,162 - 34,466,914
Restricted for debt service 1,445,675 - - - 1,445,875
Unrestricted 2,485,066 185,783 15,621 §8912 2,735,392
Total net assats 3 37.875!503 $ 165,793 3 537,773 [ 68,512 $ 38,647,981
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets — Enterprise Fund

Accounts — Year Ended June 30, 2012

REVENUES
Charges for services:
Water
Sewer
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Water
Wastewater
Amortization expense
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
interest and investment revenue
Gain (loss) on capital asset disposal
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenue {expenses)
Income {loss) before transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers In
Transfers out

Change in net assets
Total net assets - beginning
Total net assets - ending

2002 Utllity
Revenus Bond,
Meter Deposit Constrution
BPWA Account DAWES Account Account Total
5 6,142,023 5 5 $ 6,142,023
985,301 - - 985,301
25343 - 6,064 - 32,307
7,152,667 - 6,964 - 7,159,631
1,399,619 1,399,619
3,833,965 - 3,833,865
436,912 - 436,912
105,322 105,322
957,112 - 25578 - £82 690
6,732,930 - 25,578 - 8,758,508
419,737 - {18.,614) - 401,123
8,166 8 42 8,216
(84.642) - (84,642)
(383,465) - - - 383,465
{459,941) - 8 42 (459,891)
(40,204) - (18.606) 42 (58,768)
435,598 435,598
5,354,859 - 5,354 859
{3,215,895) - - - {3,215 595)
2,534,656 - (18,606) 42 2,516,092
36,340,847 165,793 556,379 58,870 36,131,889
3 37,875,503 $ 165,793 537,773 [ 68,912 [ 38,847,981
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CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Schedule of Debt Service Coverage Requirements — Year Ended June 30, 2012

Gross Revenue Available for Debt Service:

Operating revenues of leased systems (1)
Sales tax pledged

Total Gross Revenues Available
System QOperating Expenses (1)

Net Revenues Available for Debt Service

Debt Service Requitements:
Average annual debt service - 2002 uiility revenue bonds
Maximum annual debt service - OWRB promissory note - 1998 CWSRF
Maximum annual debt service - OWRB promissory note - 2009 DWSRF
Maximum annual debt service - OWRB promissory note - 2011 CWSRF
Total Debt Service Requirements
Coverage

Coverage Requirement

(1) Leased systems include water, sewer and administration thereof,

Schedule of Reserve Requirements

Balance in Reserve Account, June 30, 2012

Required Balance of Reserve per Agreement

Excess of Account Balance over Required Balance

67

2002 1998, 2009 & 2011
Utility Revenue Bonds OWRBE Notes
$ 7,159,631 $ 7,159,631
2,098,652 R
9,258,283 7,159,631
5,670,496 5,670,496
5 3,587,787 $ 1,489,135
$ 476,113 $ -
- 326,168
- 102,686
215,802
$ 476,113 s 644,656
754% 231%
125% 125%
2002 Utility 1998 OWRB
Revenue Bond Note Payable
$476,112 $355,368
476,112 355,368




CITY OF BIXBY, OKLAHOMA
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2012
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

December 31, 2012

Honorable Board of City Commissioners
City of Bixby
Bixby, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Bixby, Oklahoma, (City) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financlal statements and have issued our report
thereon dated December 31, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the basic financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements wiil
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies
or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal controi over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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City of Bixby
December 31, 2012

We also noted certain additional matters that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated
December 31, 2012.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, and all
federal awarding and pass-through entities and is not intended te be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties. )

CBEW Professional Group, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

December 31, 2012

Honorable Board of City Commissioners
City of Bixby
Bixby, Oklahoma

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Bixby, Oklahoma, (City) with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the City of Bixby's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2012. The City’'s major federa! programs are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of
Bixby, Oklahoma's compliance based on our audit,

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audfting Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence about the City of Bixby, Oklahoma's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Bixby, Oklahoma complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2012.

Internal Control over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemnal control over compliance
with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the City of Bixby, Oklahoma's internal control over compliance with the
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control over compliance.
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City of Bixby
December 31, 2012

A deficiency In internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance doss
not allow management or employees, In the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in infernal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal contro! over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In internal control over compliance that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal contral
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

08420 Pefessmat Mg O
CBEW Professional Group, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
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CITY OF BIXBY
Bixby, Oklahoma

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal Grantor/ Federal Program
Federal Grantor/Pass Through CFDA or Award Revenue Federal
Grantor/Program Title Number Amount Collected Expenditures

U.S. Department of Transportation:

Recreational Trails Program 20.219 65,000 26,085 26,085
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 20.614 3,000 2,205 2,205
Alchchot Impaired Driving Countermeasures 20.601 20,000 13,110 13,110

Sub-total U.S. Department of Transportation 88,000 41,400 41,400

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developmant:
Passed through the Oklahoma Department of Commerce;

CDBG - 09 14.228 71,215 4,750 4,750
CDBG - 10 14.228 76,268 1,975 1,875
CDBG - 11 14.228 53,087 52,080 52,080

Sub-total U.8. Department of Housing and Urban Development 201,470 58,805 58,805

U.S. Department of Justice:
Passed through the Okiahoma Department of Justice:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance 16.738 10,000 10,000 10,000
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16,607 4,400 435 435
Sub-total U.S. Department of Justice 14,400 10,435 10,435

Environmental Protection Agency:
Passad through the Oklahoma Water Resources Board:

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water Revolving 66.458 1,183,810 1,183,810 1,183,810
Sub-tofal Environmental Protetion Agency 1,183,810 1,183,810 1,183,810
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,487,680 § 12904450 § 1,294,450

Note A - This schedule was prepared on an accrual (GAAF) basis of accounting consistent with the preparation of the
basic financial statements.
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CITY OF BIXBY
Bixby, Oklahoma

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

1.

The auditor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the basic financial statements of the City of
Bixby.

Nao significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. No material weaknesses are reported.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of City of Bixby were disclosed during
the audit.

No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs are reported in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct Material

Effect on Each Major Program and Intemal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circuiar A-
133". No material weaknesses are reported.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for City of Bixby expresses an
unqualified opinion on all major federal programs.

There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for City of Bixby required to be
reported in this Schedule.

The programs tested as major programs included: Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving
Funds ~ CFDA No. 66.458.

The threshold used for distinguishing between Types A and B programs was $300,000.

The City of Bixby did qualify as a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

1.

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

1.

None
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CITY OF BIXBY
Bixby, Oklahoma

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

There were no prior year audit findings.
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